
 
 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

Monday, October 17, 2016 
2:45 p.m. Tour of Inspection 

4:00 p.m. Open Session   
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:    ERIK DYAR, CHAIR   
      KATHRYN GUALTIERI 
      LYNN MOMBOISSE 
      THOMAS HOOD 
 
B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
Shortly after 2:45 p.m., the Board will leave the Council Chambers for an on-site Tour of 
Inspection.  The public is welcome to follow the Historic Resources Board on its tour of the 
subject sites.  The Board will return to the Council Chambers at 4:00 p.m., or as soon 
thereafter as possible. 
 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D.  APPEARANCES 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on matters within the jurisdiction of the Board may do 
so now.  Please state the matter on which you wish to speak.  Matters not appearing on the 
Board’s agenda will not receive action at this meeting, but may be referred to staff for a future 
meeting.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes, or as established by the Board.  
Persons are not required to give their name or address, but it is helpful for speakers to state 
their name in order that the Secretary may identify them.  
 
E.   CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Minutes from the August 22, 2016 Historic Resources Board Meeting  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
October 17, 2016 

Page 1 
1



 
 
F.  ITEM 
                                                 
1.   MP 16-002 (City War Memorial) 
      American Legion Post 512 
      Ocean and San Carlos  
       

 Consideration of the bracket design for the 
replacement of the War Memorial Bell on 
the Ocean Avenue median, at the 
intersection of Ocean Avenue and San 
Carlos Street. 
 

2.   DS 16-308 (Henderson) 
      Chuck Henderson 
      NW Cor. Scenic and Martin Way  
      Block: B-18, Lots: 1 & 2 
      APN: 009-423-001 

 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-
308) application for the repair of a historic 
residence located in the Single-Family 
Residential (R-1)  and Beach and Riparian 
Overlay (BR) Zoning Districts 

   
3.  DS 276 (Holtkamp) 
     Ken and Sharon Holtkamp 
     SW corner of San Carlos St. & 12th 
     Block: 143, Lot: 31, 33, 35  
     APN: 010-164-001 
 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-
276) for alterations to a historic residence 
located in the Single-Family Residential 
(R-1) Zoning District.   
 

4. DS 16-377 (Ayres) 
 Janet Ayers 
 Carmelo Street, 2 SW of 13th  
 Block: 2, Lots: 7 & 9  
 APN: 010-287-002 
 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-
377) for alterations to a historic residence 
located in the Single-Family Residential 
(R-1) Zoning District. 

5. DS 16-306 (Garren) 
 Ron and Donna Garren 
 Santa Rita Street, 3 NE of 6th Avenue 
 Block: 62, Lots: 14 
 APN: 010-035-013 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-
306) for alterations to a historic residence 
located in the Single-Family Residential 
(R-1) Zoning District. 

 
 
G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
 
H. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 
I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 
J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 

Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
October 17, 2016 

Page 2 
2



 
 
K.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Historic Resources Board 
regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the 
Planning and Building Department located at City Hall, on Monte Verde between Ocean 
and 7th Avenues during normal business hours. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Historic Resources Board is TBD. 
      
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.  The 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Telecommunication’s Device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired 
(TDD) number is 1-800-735-2929. 
 
The City Council Chambers is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to 
come to the podium.  Assisted listening devices are available upon request to the Board 
Secretary.  If you need assistance, please advise the Board Secretary what item you 
would like to comment on, and the microphone will be brought to you. 
 
 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Marc E. Wiener, Community Planning and Building Director, for the City of Carmel-by-
the-Sea, DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 
California, that the foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin 
board, posted at the Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln, October 13th, 2016. 
 
Dated this 13th day of October, 2016, at the hour of 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Marc Wiener, Community Planning and Building Director 

Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
October 17, 2016 

Page 3 
3



MINUTES 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

August 22, 2016 
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Erik Dyar at 4:00 p.m.  

PRESENT:  Erik Dyar, Chair  
Lynn Momboisse 
Kathryn Gualtieri 
Thomas Hood 

 
              ABSENT:  Julie Wendt 

 
 STAFF PRESENT: Marc Wiener, Acting Community Planning and Building Director 

Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner  
Catherine Tarone, Assistant Planner acting as meeting Secretary  
 

B. TOUR OF INSPECTION 
The Commission convened at 3:00 p.m. and then toured the following sites:  

• MA 16-269/ DS 16-276 (Holtkamp), SW corner of San Carlos & 12 Ave.; Blk: 143, 
Lots: 31,33,35 

• DR 16-293 (Spaits), NE corner of Ocean Ave. & Dolores St.; Blk: 71, Lot: 8 & 9 
• DR 14-10 (Doyle), NE corner of Mission and 8th Ave.; Blk: 89, Lot: 20 

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Members of the audience joined the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
D. APPEARANCES 

N/A 
 

E. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Consideration of the minutes of the July 18, 2016 Historic Resources Board Meeting. 
 
Board Member Gualtieri moved to approve the July 18, 2016 minutes with 
corrections. Motion seconded by Board Member Momboisse and carried by the 
following roll call vote: 4-0-1-0. 
 

4



 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI & DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: WENDT  
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

 
F. ITEM 

 
      1a.   DS 16-276 (Holtkamp) 
      Ken and Sharon Holtkamp 
      SW corner of San Carlos St./12th  
      Block: 143, Lot: 31,33,35 
      APN: 010-164-001 

             
        

 

 

 Consideration of a recommendation to the 
City Council to adopt a Resolution to add a 
Historic Resource to the Carmel Register 
for purposes of approving a Mills Act 
Contract (MA 16-269) and Consideration of 
a Design Study (DS 16-276) for alterations 
to a historic residence located in the 
Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District 

Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner provided staff report. Mr. Sundt summarized the 
design revisions.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. Seeing no speakers Chair Dyar closed the public 
hearing. 
 
The Board held brief discussion.  
 
Chair Dyar reopened the public hearing.  
 
Speaker #1: Jeff Di Bendetto, Applicant answered questions from the Historic Resources 
Board and provided clarity on proposed design.  
 
Chair Dyar closed the public hearing. 
 
The Board continued discussion.  

 
Board Member Hood moved to continue the DS 16-276 (Holtkamp). Motion seconded 
by Board Member Momboisse and carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-1-0. 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI & DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: WENDT 

5



ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

      1b.  MA 16-269 (Holtkamp) 
      Ken and Sharon Holtkamp 
      SW corner of San Carlos St./12th  
      Block: 143, Lot: 31,33,35 
      APN: 010-164-001 

             
        

 Consideration of a recommendation to the 
City Council to adopt a Resolution to add a 
Historic Resource to the Carmel Register for 
purposes of approving a Mills Act Contract 
(MA 16-269) and Consideration of a Design 
Study (DS 16-276) for alterations to a 
historic residence located in the Single-
Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District 

  Chair Dyar opened public hearing. 
 

Speaker #1: Jeff Di Bendetto requested clarification to the Historic Resources Board 
directive pertaining to the stairway. 
 
Chair Dyar closed the public hearing.  

 
 The Historic Resources Board held discussion and addressed Mr. Di Bendetto’s inquiry. 

 
Board Member Momboisse moved to add MA 16-269 (Holtkamp) to the Carmel 
register for the purposes of approving the Mills Act contract and to recommend the 
City Council adopt a resolution to approve the Mills Act contract with the condition to 
remove item #11, the stairway, from the rehabilitation and maintenance plan. Motion 
seconded by Board Member Hood and carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-1-0. 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI & DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: WENDT 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

2.  DR 16-293 (Spaits) 
            Jason Spaits 
            NE corner Ocean Ave. & Dolores St. 
            Block: 71, Lots: 8 & 9 
            APN: 010-134-009         
 

 Consideration of a Design Review (Ds 16-
293) application for alterations to a historic 
building (Carmel Bank building) located in 
the Central Commercial (CC) Zoning District  

Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner presented staff report. Mr. Sundt noted more 
research is needed to determine if the stained glass window is part of the historic fabric 
of the building. Mr. Sundt answered questions from the Board.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing. 

6



 
Speaker #1: Applicant/Architect, Chris Barlow summarized the proposed design details. 
 
Seeing no speakers the public hearing was closed. 
 
Board Members held brief discussion and provided direction for the applicant to 
research the historicity of the stained glass window and provide evidence that the 
window is not part of the historic fabric.  

 
Board Member Hood moved to continue the DR 16-293 (Spaits). Motion seconded by 
Board Member Momboisse and carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-1-0. 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: GUALTIERI, HOOD, MOMBOISSE & DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: WENDT 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

3.  DR 14-10 (Doyle)  
            Carmel-by-the-Sea (Scout House) 
            NE corner of Mission and 8th Ave.  
            Block: 89, Lots: 20 
            APN: 010-087-005         
 

 Consideration of a Design Review (DR 14-10) 
application for minor modifications to the 
east evaluation of the Scout House for 
accessibility improvements 

Marc Wiener, Planning Director summarized staff report.  Mr. Wiener answered 
questions from the Commission.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing, seeing no speakers the public hearing was closed.  
 
Board Member Momboisse motioned to issue a determination of consistency with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for DR 14-10 (Doyle/Scout House.) Motion 
seconded by Board Member Hood and carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-1-0. 
 
AYES:              COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI &      
                                        DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: WENDT 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

4.  Mills Act Policy 
            Carmel-by-the-Sea 
            

 Discussion of the City’s Mills Act Policy for the 
purpose of making recommendations to the City 
Council  

 

7



 
Marc Wiener, Planning Director provided a brief summary of the financial aspects of the 
Mills Act contracts.  Mr. Wiener answered questions from the Commission. 
  
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing, seeing no speakers the public hearing was closed.  
 
Board Members held discussion.  
 
Board Member Dyar moved to alter the appropriate section of the city Ordinance to 
limit the number of Mills Acts contracts to be approved from three per year to nine 
Mills Act contract every three years. Motion seconded by Board Member Hood and 
carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-1-0. 
 
AYES:              COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI &      
                                        DYAR 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: WENDT 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 

G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

N/A 

H.  SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT   

Chair Dyar appointed Historic Resources Board Member, Thomas Hood to the 
Midcentury Modern Subcommittee. Board Member Hood accepted his appointment.  

I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 N/A 
 
J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Chair Dyar announced upcoming events at the Cherry Center.  
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned 
at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  

 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Erik Dyar, Chair 

8



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

October 17, 2016 

To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 

From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 

Subject:  Consideration of the bracket design for the replacement of the War 
Memorial Bell on the Ocean Avenue median, at the intersection of Ocean 
Avenue and San Carlos Street.  

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Issue a Determination of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
proposed bracket design 
 
Application: MP 16-002 APN: City Right of Way  
Block: n/a                                   Lot: n/a 
Location:  World War I Memorial Arch in the Ocean Avenue median, on the east side of the 

intersection of Ocean Avenue and San Carlos Street. 
Applicant: American Legion Post 512 Property Owner: City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
 
Background:  
 
The World War I memorial arch was constructed in 1922 under the design and supervision of 
Charles Sumner Greene, who is one of the founders of the Arts and Crafts Movement.  The arch 
design included a bell, however, sufficient funds were not available at the time of the original 
construction to cast the bell hence it was not hung in the arch.  The arch stood empty until the 
City’s 50th birthday in 1966 when a bell was gifted from Sir Harry Downie, a master restorer of 
the Carmel Mission.  The gifted bell was likely constructed in 1692 and is historic in its own 
right, however, it did not match the original Charles Sumner Green design.  This past year the 
1692 bell was removed by the City and is being stored in the history section of the Children’s 
Library.   
 
On May 16, 2016, the Historic Resources Board (HRB) issued a Determination of Consistency 
with the Secretary’s Standards for the installation of a new bell within the arch of the World 
War I Memorial.  The design of the bell closely resembled the original Charles Sumner Green 

9



MP 16-002 (War Memorial Bell) 
October 17 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
design.  Staff notes that the mounting bracket had not yet been designed at the time that the 
bell design was reviewed and the HRB requested to review the bracket design once completed.  
The applicant has returned with a mounting bracket design.   
 
Staff analysis:  
 
Bracket Design:   The original bell was mounted by chains, which according to the applicant 
kept the bell from swinging.  The applicant is proposing to fasten the new bell to the wood 
beam at the top of the arch with interlinked hooked bands, held in place with wedge-shaped 
pins.  The bracket would be fabricated from bronze and the assembly and design is show in 
Figures 3-7, included in Attachment A.  In staff’s opinion, the proposed bracket is compatible 
with the World War I Memorial, as recommended by the Secretary of the Interior.    
 
Environmental Review:  The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior Standard’s for historic resources.  If the alterations are consistent with 
the standards, potential historic resource impacts under CEQA do not require further analysis.  
Staff concludes that the proposed alterations would be consistent with the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards and therefore, do not require additional environmental analysis.   
 
Alternatives:  The staff recommendation is to issue a Determination of Consistency with the 
Secretary’s Standards.  Alternatively, the Board could direct additional changes to the plan to 
achieve consistency with the Secretary’s Standards, in which case, the Board may need to 
continue the item to allow the applicant to return with further-revised plans.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Attachment A – Bracket Design 
 

10



Carmel Centennial Bell Project: Mounting Bracket  
 
How to mount the new Centennial Bell to the crossbeam is an interesting challenge.  The 
mounting needs to hold the bell securely in place; keep it from moving; be resistant to 
malfeasance; try to be faithful to Mr. Greene's design; and last 100 years or more. 
 
The old bell was held tightly in place by two iron-link chains (Fig. 1), not a recommended 
method.   However, those chains did keep it from swinging, something the new mounting 
system must also do.   Figure 2 is a scale mockup of what the new bell will look like if 
suspended from chain. 

 Figure 1      Figure 2 
 
Figures 3, 4, & 5 are photos of Greene & Greene metal work possibly inspired by the 
brothers' interest in pegged mortise-and-tenon Japanese architecture. Interlinked hooked 
bands held in place with wedge-shaped pins.  This is the bracket design we have chosen for 
the Centennial Bell. 
 

Fig. 3     Fig. 4      Fig. 5 
 
 
Figure 6 is the Thorsen House bracket set vertically and precisely what we wish to replicate.  
The only difference is to size the elements properly for our bell and our wooden beam. 

   Figure 6   
 
 
Figure 7 is a shop drawing for the bell crown, which, if you zoom in, will see is designed to 
take rectangular bronze straps like those in the photos above.  Specifically, it is designed to 

R. Kreitman  9/11/16 
11



take two ¾” wide pieces of ½” sheet bronze as the under brackets, and one piece of 2” wide 
by ½” sheet bronze as the bracket over the top of the beam.  Four triangular wedges made 
from the same ½“ material complete the kit.   
 
The beam is 8” tall by 5-11/16” wide.  Where the 180o bends are placed and to what extent 
the straps overlap will determine how long the straight pieces need to be.  By my estimate 
we should start with 30” bars, just to be safe.   The 4 wedges may need to be as much as 6” 
wide and 3” deep, and can be cut from one piece of ½” plate 6” x 6”.  We may be able to 
order these pieces pre-cut from a metal supply house. 
 

 Fig. 7  
 
Figure 8 is a colorful and accurate scale rendition of the bracket.  One essential element that 
will have to be worked out by the fabricator is precisely where to place the 180-degree 
bends, how much overlap there’ll be, and how big and what shape the wedges need to be.  

  Figure 8 

R. Kreitman  9/11/16 
12



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

October 17, 2016 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 
 
From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-308) for alterations to a historic 

residence located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Issue a Determination of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards subject to 
the attached conditions. 
 
Application: DS 15-158 (Henderson) APN:  009-423-001 and 009-423-002 
Block:   B-18                             Lots:  1 & 2 
Location: NW Corner of Scenic and Martin Way  
Applicant:  Gail Hatter-Crawford Property Owner:  Wellington S. Henderson Jr.  
 
Background 
 
The existing residence, known as the “Cabin on the Rocks”, is a low one-story concrete and 
Carmel Stone house that projects out on a granite outcropping over the Carmel Bay.  The house 
was designed by Architect Frank Lloyd Wright in 1948 and construction was completed in 1952.    
This property was listed on the Carmel Historic Survey in 2001 as the only house designed and 
constructed by Frank Lloyd Wright in Carmel that relates directly to its seaside location and 
environment. The residence was also recently placed on the National Register of Historic 
Places.   
 
According to the City’s property records and Monterey County Assessor records, the 
construction period of the residence lasted from April 1951 to November 1952.  At some point 
after construction, “Desert Masonry” stone siding was changed to the existing “Carmel Stone” 
siding, and multiple interior changes were made.  In 1961, a master bedroom addition was 
constructed and between 1999 and 2000, the owners rebuilt the existing fences surrounding 
the property.   

13



DS 16-308 (Henderson) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
Proposed Project 
 
The applicant is proposing to stabilize the concrete walls at the front of the residence (the 
ship’s prow) and to replace the stone veneer as needed.  The project includes the following 
components: (1) demolishing a portion of the patio surface for the installation of new rebar 
supports ties to provide structural support, (2) installation of epoxied rebar to support the 
stone veneer, and (3) remove and in-kind replacement of stone as needed.  The applicant is 
proposing to match the existing appearance of the wall to the maximum extent feasible. All 
work shall conform to the approved plans except as conditioned by this permit.        
 
Staff Analysis 
 
Historic Evaluation Summary: The California Environmental Quality Act requires environmental 
review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards (Standards). The proposed alterations were reviewed by the City’s Historic 
Preservation Consultant: Kent Seavey. The Historic Assessment prepared by Mr. Seavey 
includes an analysis of the proposed changes based on the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
for the Treatment of Historic Properties (Attachment E). The assessment concludes that the 
project would be consistent with the Standards  
 
The applicant has submitted a report from the Monterey Bay Engineering (Attachment C) 
explaining why the proposed work is necessary.  The report explains that the wall is constructed 
with tie rods, which are necessary for structural support.  Excavation into the wall had revealed 
that the tie rods have rusted to the point of not being functional.  The engineer is proposing to 
replace this system with three tension beams, each consisting of three stainless steel rods 
encased in concrete.  The engineer has also observed that the stone veneer is separating from 
the underlying concrete.  The the installation of fiberglass coated rebar tie-ins (“epoxy 
anchors”) throughout the wall are proposed in order to stabilize the stone veneer.   
 
In order to complete the above noted work, the applicant is proposing to remove the stone 
veneer from the wall.  The project description provided by the applicant (Attachment D) 
indicates that the existing stone will be retained and reused to the maximum extent feasible.  
However, in several areas the stone is eroded and the applicant intends to replace this with 
Santa Maria stone, which is similar in color and texture to the original.  The applicant has 
indicated that they will use photographs as a guide to ensure that the new veneer has a 
consistent look to the existing veneer, which entails mimicking the horizontal arrangement of 

14



DS 16-308 (Henderson) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 3  
 
the stones, the orientation within the stone, and the variety of sizes and placement of the 
stone.  A sample of the proposed stone will be available at the meeting.   
 
The City’s Historic Preservation Consultant, Kent Seavey, has made recommendations regarding 
the stone replacement.  The following is a staff summary of those recommendations, which 
have also been included as project conditions:  
 

1. That the applicant analyze the original mortal composition and match.  
2. Prior to any construction activity, the applicant shall photograph immediate areas on 

the wall at the proposed anchor locations to create a matrix for the Carmel Stone 
replacement.  The stone shall be replaced/repaired to match the photos.  

3. The applicant shall make a measure cross-section drawing of the wall structure from the 
coring holes and note the build-up of the stone, mortar and concrete within the wall to 
use as a reference for futures repair to the stone work.  

4. The proposed stone shall be reviewed and approved by City Staff and the City’s Historic 
Consultant for color, texture and suitability prior to installation. 

5. The stone placement, alignment, and configurations (horizontal and vertical) shall match 
the existing to the fullest extent possible.  

 
Mr. Seavey is currently working with the property owner on the project has will be involved 
throughout the process to ensure compliance with the above noted conditions and that the 
stone be replaced in kind. 
 
The Coastal Commission has been apprised of the project and the City is working with their staff 
to ensure that all of the necessary documentation is in place for the issuance of a Coastal 
Development Permit (CDP).  The Planning Commission is responsible for issuing the CDP for this 
project, however, the CDP is appealable to the Coastal Commission.    
 
Archaeological Analysis: The subject residence and surrounding lands are located within the 
City of Carmel Archaeological Significance Overlay zone.  The standard conditions of approval 
for projects located within the Archaeological Zone are included in the recommended 
Conditions of Approval (Attachment A).  
 
Alternatives:  The staff recommendation is to issue a determination that the application, as 
conditioned, is consistent with the Secretary’s Standards.  Alternatively, the Board could find 
the application inconsistent with the Secretary’s Standards, which would result in either the 

15



DS 16-308 (Henderson) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 4  
 
withdrawal of the project by the applicant, or the requirement that the project undergo CEQA 
analysis to evaluate impacts on historic resources.   
 
Environmental Review:  The proposed project is categorically exempt from CEQA requirements, 
pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1) – Existing Facilities.  The project includes the repair of an 
existing shoreline residential wall, and therefore qualifies for a Class 1 exemption.  The 
proposed work will not develop or disturb surrounding areas and does not present any unusual 
circumstances that would result in a potentially significant environmental impact. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 
• Attachment B – DPR 523 Form  
• Attachment C – Engineer Justification Report 
• Attachment D – Description of Work 
• Attachment E – Phase II Report (Kent Seavey) 
• Attachment F – Project Plans 

16



 
 
Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 

 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
DS 16-308 
Wellington Henderson Jr.  
NW Corner of Scenic and Martin 
Block:  B-18, Lot: 1 & 2 
APN:  009-423-001 and 009-423-002  
 
AUTHORIZATION:   
 
This Determination of Consistency (DS 16-308) authorizes repairs to the existing terrace and 
patio by: (1) replacing deteriorated structural supports, (2) demolishing a portion of the patio 
surface for the installation of new rebar supports ties to the structure and terrace walls, and (3) 
remove and replace facing stones as needed. 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:   
 
1. That the applicant analyze the original mortal composition and match.  

 
2. Prior to any construction activity, the applicant shall photograph immediate areas on the 

wall at the proposed anchor locations to create a matrix for the Carmel Stone replacement.  
The stone shall be replaced/repaired to match the photos.  

 
3. The applicant shall make a measure cross-section drawing of the wall structure from the 

coring holes and note the build-up of the stone, mortar and concrete within the wall to use 
as a reference for futures repair to the stone work. 

  
4. The proposed stone shall be reviewed and approved by City Staff and the City’s Historic 

Consultant for color, texture and suitability prior to installation. 
 
5. The stone placement, alignment, and configurations (horizontal and vertical) shall match 

the existing to the fullest extent possible.  
 

6. Prior to the beginning of construction, the applicant shall convene a pre-construction 
meeting to include the contractor and the City’s Project Planner to ensure compliance with 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. 

 

17



 
 
DS 16-308 (Henderson) 
October 17, 2016 
Conditions of Approval 
Page 2 
 
7. All work should be physically and visually compatible, identifiable upon close inspection and 

documented for further research.  
 

8. All new construction involving excavation shall immediately cease if cultural resources are 
discovered on the site, and the applicant shall notified the Community Planning and 
Building Department within 24 hours.  Work shall not be permitted to recommence until 
such resources are properly evaluated for significance by a qualified archaeologist.  If the 
resources are determined to be significant, prior to resumption of work, a mitigation and 
monitoring plan shall be prepared by a qualified archaeologist and reviewed and approved 
by the Community Planning and Building Director.  In addition, if human remains are 
unearthed during excavation, no further disturbance shall occur until the County Coroner 
has made the necessary findings as to origin and distribution pursuant to California Public 
Resources Code (PRC) Section 5097.98. 

 
 
*Acknowledgement and acceptance of conditions of approval. 
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Property Owner Name 
 
 
___________________________________________________  __________________ 
Property Owner Signature      Date 
 
 
Once signed, please return to the Community Planning and Building Department. 

18



19

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - DPR523 Form



20



21



22



23



28

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment C - Engineer Report (Justification)



29



30



31

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment D - Project Description



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment E - Phase II



40



41

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment F - Project Plans

mwiener
Typewritten Text

mwiener
Typewritten Text



42



43



44



45



46



47



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

October 17, 2016 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 

From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 

Submitted by: Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner 

Subject:  Consideration of a Final Design Study (DS 16-276) for alterations to a 
historic residence located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Issue a Determination of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.  
 
Application: DS 16-276 APN:  010-164-001 
Block:  137                                   Lot:  1 
Location: Southwest Corner of San Carlos Street and 12th Avenue 
Property Owner:  The Sharon B. Holtkamp and Kenneth W. Holtkamp AB Living Trust  
 
Background and Project Description 
This Design Study was reviewed by the HRB at their August 22, 2016 meeting, whereupon the 
HRB directed the applicant to reduce the size of a proposed dormer window on the north roof 
slope intended to accommodate head room for the rebuilt stairwell and second-floor 
bathroom.  The HRB also indicated support for splitting the larger dormer into two separate 
dormers.      
 
In the current plans, the applicant proposes to shift the existing bathroom to the north side of 
the second floor, as originally proposed, thereby necessitating two dormers on the north roof 
slope, one for the stairwell and one for the relocated bathroom.  At the last meeting the HRB 
discussed relocating the bathroom to the east end of the second floor rather than the north, 
however, the applicant has determined that relocating the bathroom east would require 
significant interior modifications to floors and walls to accommodate fresh water and sewer 
and drainage pipes.  There is currently no plumbing (‘wet wall’) on the east side of the house so 

48



DS 16-276 (Holtkamp) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
creating a new ‘wet wall’ is a significant issue.  The least disruptive design would have the 
existing bathroom remain in the same area of the second floor.   
 
The proposed dormers on the north roof slope are each 7.5 feet wide with matching slopes and 
separated from each other by approximately 2.5 feet and the most westerly dormer is set back 
from the edge of roof by approximately 2.5 feet.  In staff’s opinion, the revised dormer design is 
a significant improvement over the original proposal, which is depicted in the north elevation 
included as Attachment B.   
 
In addition, as discussed at the August 22 meeting, the applicant is proposing to bump out the 
back (southwest) corner walls of the first floor master bedroom to allow 37 square feet 
additional area, construct a new staircase to the basement, remodel the kitchen and first floor 
bathroom, and the front portico concrete flat-work repaired.  The floor area of the residence 
will remain within its allowable square footage (2,266 sf is allowed on a 5,360 sf lot).   
 
Staff Analysis 
There are two project components subject to the Secretary of the Interior Standards - the 
proposed 37 square-foot addition on the main floor at the rear of the residence and the new 
dormer windows.  Interior modifications to the residence are not subject to the Secretary’s 
Standards.  Per Kent Seavey, the work to be undertaken is in conformance with the Secretary of 
the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties, under the Standard of 
Rehabilitation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 
• Attachment B – Original North Elevation 
• Attachment C – Project Plans 

 

49



 
Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 

 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
DS 16-276 
Mr. and Mrs. Holtkamp 
Southwest Corner of San Carlos Street and 12th Avenue 
Block:  137;  Lot: 1 
APN:  010-164-001  
 
AUTHORIZATION:   
 
1. This Determination of Consistency (DS 16-276) authorizes alterations to an existing one-

story 1,371-square foot residence.   The applicant is proposing to bump out the back 
(southwest) corner walls of the first floor master bedroom to allow 37 square feet 
additional area.  The floor area will remain within its allowable square footage (2,266 sf 
is allowed on a 5,360 sf lot). In addition, two dormer windows will be installed on the 
north roof slope as shown in the approved project plans dated September 12, 2016.  In 
addition, a new staircase to the basement will be constructed, the kitchen and 
downstairs bathroom remodeled, and the front portico concrete flat-work repaired.  All 
work shall conform to the approved plans except as conditioned by this permit.    

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:   
 
2. Prior to the beginning of construction, the applicant shall convene a pre-construction 

meeting to include the contractor and the City’s Project Planner to ensure compliance 
with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. 

3. All trees shall be protected during construction by methods approved by the City 
Forester.  All foundations within 15 feet of significant trees shall be excavated by hand.  
If any tree roots larger than two inches (2”) are encountered during construction, the 
City Forester shall be contacted before cutting the roots.  The City Forester may require 
the roots to be bridged or may authorize the roots to be cut.  If roots larger than two 
inches (2”) in diameter are cut without prior City Forester approval or any significant 
tree is endangered as a result of construction activity, the building permit will be 
suspended and all work stopped until an investigation by the City Forester has been 
completed.  Twelve inches (12”) of mulch shall be evenly spread inside the dripline of all 
trees prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 

50



 
 
DS 16-276 (Holtkamp) 
October 17, 2016 
Conditions of Approval 
Page 2 
 
 
*Acknowledgement and acceptance of conditions of approval. 
 
 
______________________  _________________  ___________ 
Property Owner Signature  Printed Name   Date 
 
 
Once signed, please return to the Community Planning and Building Department. 

51



52

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - Original Elevations



53

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment C - Project Plans



54



55



56



57



58



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

October 17, 2016 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 

From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 

Submitted by: Matthew Sundt, Contract Planner 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-377) for alterations to a historic 

residence located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Issue a Determination of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards  
 
Application: DS 16-377 (Ayres) APN:  010-287-002 
Block:   2                                  Lots:  7 & 9  
Location: Carmelo Street, 2 SW of 13th Avenue 
Applicant:  Craig Holdren, Architect Property Owner:  Janet Ayres 
 
Background 
The existing residence, known as the “Eliza Palache House”, is a French Eclectic style residence 
built in 1931 by Michael J. Murphy, a noted Carmel builder.  The residence is listed in the 
Carmel Historic Resource Inventory but is not on the California Register of Historical 
Resources.1  
 
Per the DPR Form 523 prepared for the “Eliza Palache House” in 2001, it is historically 
significant under criterion 3 (architecture) - “The property is a prototype of, or an outstanding 
example of, a period, style, architectural movement, or construction, or if it is one of the more 
notable works, or the best surviving work, in a region of a pioneer architect, designer, or master 
builder.”  In this case, it is a building designed and constructed by Carmel’s master builder M.J. 
Murphy.     
 

1   web site visited 10/5/16 - http://ohp.parks.ca.gov/ListedResources/?view=county&criteria=27 
                                              

59



DS 15-16-377 (Ayres) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
 
The residence sits on a concrete foundation and has an exterior wall clad in smooth cement 
stucco.   The steeply pitched main roof is intersected by a series of three lower projecting bays 
of the same type with hipped roof dormers.  The north bay is a garage with a vertical 
segmented arched wood plank door.  An angled bay, projecting southeast has a bowed window 
with a rounded roof form typical of those found on French Norman farmhouses.  A stucco-clad 
polygonal exterior eave-wall chimney, reflecting Renaissance detailing, is found on the 
northeast side of this bay.  The roof is covered in cedar shingles.  Fenestration is irregular with a 
combination of single, paired and banked steel casement windows.  The ½ wood paneled and ½ 
glass entry door is recessed behind a segmentally arched opening.  The grounds are enclosed 
behind a finally detailed wrought iron fence set on a Carmel stone base.   
 
Proposed Project 
The existing residence is 2,565 square feet in size with a second floor, a basement, and 
attached garage.  The applicant is proposing to add a 185 square foot conservatory (expands 
the kitchen space) on the north elevation of the main floor, and construct a bay window also on 
the north elevation that will add 30 square feet each to the main and basement floors.  An 
additional 11 square feet will be added to the upper floor bathroom.  A total of 256 square feet 
of additional floor area is proposed.  The resulting total floor area is 2,821 square feet.     
 
The conservatory will be glazed with five, fixed and banded, wood framed windows, separated 
by vertical mullions and with simple wood muntins.  The conservatory windows are set on a 
three foot tall stone veneer wall, thereby differentiating this feature from the historic 
Normandy style of the existing architecture.  As shown in the project plans (page A3.1) the roof 
is a combination standing seam metal roof and glass (plans do not indicate what type of metal).  
The plans also show that the redesigned roof dormer to accommodate the upper floor 
bathroom will have a slightly different pitch from those on the façade and rear elevations, 
thereby differentiating the old from the new.  
 
The proposed bay window adjacent to the conservatory vertically connects the main floor and 
the basement.  The basement will have reconfigured steps and a new landing below ground 
level.  This bay window includes tongue and groove vertical siding and an 11’ x 4’ deck off the 
main floor.  The glazing will be wooden French doors, accessing a small balcony with wrought 
iron railing, glazing will match the mullion and muntin patterns on the conservatory.  The 
roofing is also a standing seam metal roof.  The proposed bay window will not be visible from a 

60



DS 15-16-377 (Ayres) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 3  
 
public right-of-way.  There is a two-prong redwood tree on the north side of the property that 
will not be affected by this project. 
 
Staff Analysis 
 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
A Phase II Historic Assessment was prepared by the Historic Preservation Consultant, Mr. Kent  
Seavey (Attachment C).  As stated in this Assessment, the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
for the Treatment of Historic Properties identify four primary treatment approaches to historic 
buildings.  They are Restoration, Preservation, Reconstruction and Rehabilitation.  
Rehabilitation is the recommended standards of treatment for the subject property.  
Rehabilitation is defined as the act or process of making a compatible use for a property 
through repair, alterations and additions while preserving those portions of features which 
convey it’s historical, cultural, or architectural values. 
 
The Secretary’s Standards encourage “placing a new addition on a non-character-defining 
elevation” and locating alterations to historic properties in areas where previous alterations 
already exist.  Although the proposed project will partially be seen from the public right-of-way 
and will affect to some extent the view of the primary elevation, the conservatory and bay 
window will be on the secondary elevation facing north, which has few, if any, character-
defining features (Kent Seavey, Historic Preservation Consultant, Phase II Historic Assessment, 
October 12, 2016).   
 
Standard #9 states that “the new work will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible 
with the massing, size, and scale to protect the historic integrity of the property.”  The proposed 
conservatory is 18 feet high and is consistent with the mass and scale of the historic residence.  
However, the proposed conservatory is at the maximum height allowed by the City for a single-
story structure, and if the HRB feels that the size should be more subordinate, then it could 
require that the height be reduced.  In addition to the concern regarding mass, staff also notes 
that the proposed conservatory, with its metal roof and large amount of glazing, has a modern-
style design that may not be compatible with the historic character of the residence.  While the 
Secretary of the Interior recommends differentiating new additions, the City has historically 
encouraged more subtle differentiation.   
 
Historic Evaluation Summary: The California Environmental Quality Act requires environmental 
review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the Secretary of the 

61



DS 15-16-377 (Ayres) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 4  
 
Interior’s Standards.  The proposed alterations were reviewed by the City’s Historic 
Preservation Consultant who concluded that based on his assessment of the proposed changes 
that the project, as shown on the project plans dated September 21, 2016, would be consistent 
with the Standards. 
 
Alternatives:  The staff recommendation is to issue a determination that the application is 
consistent with the Secretary’s Standards.  Alternatively, the Board could require modifications 
to the plans intended to make the addition more compatible with the historic residence, in 
which case the application could be continued.  Also, the Board could find the application 
inconsistent with the Secretary’s Standards, which would result in either the applicant 
withdrawing the project or require additional CEQA analysis to evaluate impacts on historic 
resources.   
 
Environmental Review:  The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.  If the alterations are consistent with the standards, 
potential historic resource impacts under CEQA do not require further analysis.  Staff concludes 
that the proposed alterations would be consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
and therefore, do not require additional environmental analysis.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 
• Attachment B – DPR 523 Form 
• Attachment C – Phase II Historic Assessment 
• Attachment D – Secretary of the Interior Standards 
• Attachment E – Project Plans 

62



 
Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 

 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
DS 16-377 
Janet Ayres 
Carmelo Street, 2 SW of 13th 
Block:  2;  Lots: 7 and 9 
APN:  010-287-002  
 
AUTHORIZATION:   
 
1. This Determination of Consistency (DS 16-377) authorizes alterations to an existing two -

story 2,565-square foot residence.  The applicant is proposing to build a new 
conservatory and a bay window on the north side of the residence.  A new landing and 
stairs to the basement is proposed to replace that existing.  The residence remains 
within its allowable square footage.  All work shall conform to the approved plans 
except as conditioned by this permit and shall conform to the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards. 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:   
 
2. Prior to the beginning of construction, the applicant shall convene a pre-construction 

meeting to include the contractor and the City’s Project Planner to ensure compliance 
with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. 

3. Trees shall be protected during construction by methods approved by the City Forester.  
All foundations within 15 feet of significant trees shall be excavated by hand.  If any tree 
roots larger than two inches (2”) are encountered during construction, the City Forester 
shall be contacted before cutting the roots.  The City Forester may require the roots to 
be bridged or may authorize the roots to be cut.  If roots larger than two inches (2”) in 
diameter are cut without prior City Forester approval or any significant tree is 
endangered as a result of construction activity, the building permit will be suspended 
and all work stopped until an investigation by the City Forester has been completed.  
Twelve inches (12”) of mulch shall be evenly spread inside the dripline of all trees prior 
to the issuance of a building permit. 
 

 
*Acknowledgement and acceptance of conditions of approval. 

63



 
 
DS 16-377 (Ayres) 
October 17, 2016 
Conditions of Approval 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
______________________  _________________  ___________ 
Property Owner Signature  Printed Name   Date 
 
 
 
Once signed, please return to the Community Planning and Building Department. 

64



65

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - DPR



66



67



68

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment C - Phase II Report



69



70



71



72



73



ATTACHMENT C   
 

SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR THE TREATMENT 
OF HISTORIC PROPERTIES (Rehabilitation) 

 
1. “A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 
requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site and 
environment." 
 
2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The 
removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize a 
property shall be avoided." 
 
3. "Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and 
use.  Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken."  
 
4. "Most properties change over time; changes that have acquired historic 
significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved."  
 
5. "Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved." 
 
6. "Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where 
the severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, 
where possible, materials.  Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated by 
documentary, physical, and pictorial evidence." 
 
7. "Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 
historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if appropriate, 
shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible." 
 
8. "Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected 
and preserved.  If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 
 
9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not 
destroy historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work shall be 
differentiated from the old and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its 
environment." 
 
10. "New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 
such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired." 

74



75

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment E - Plans



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

October 17, 2016 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 
 
From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Submitted by: Catherine Tarone, Assistant Planner 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a Design Study (DS 16-306) for alterations to a historic 

residence located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Issue a Determination of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards subject to 
the attached conditions. 
 
Application: DS 16-306 (Garren) APN:  010-035-013 
Block:   62                            Lots:  14 
Location: Santa Rita Street, 3 NE of 6th Avenue 
Applicant:  Glenn Warner  
Property Owner:  Ron and Donna Garren 
 
Background 
The existing residence, known as the “Raymond Meeks House,” is a one-story, wood framed 
Craftsman style residence that has vertical board and batten wood siding and a Carmel stone 
veneer covering the raised concrete, foundation on which the residence rests.  The residence 
was originally constructed in 1927 and a two-room addition was constructed on the south east 
portion of the residence in 1936.  According to Kent Seavey’s Phase II Historic Assessment, the 
addition was consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of 
Historic Properties, under the Standard for Rehabilitation.  The residence was officially listed in 
the Carmel Inventory of Historic Resources on May 25, 2005. 
 
The Raymond Meeks House is an owner-built house that is significant at the local level under 
criterion #3 (architecture), as a minimally altered example of the Craftsman style of 
architecture in Carmel.  According to the Phase II Historic Report, character defining features 

84



DS 16-306 (Garren) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
include its raised one-story height, irregular plan, board-and-batten exterior wall cladding, low-
pitched side-gabled roof system with exposed rafter tails, Craftsman style windows, and 
extensive use of Carmel stone retaining walls, staircases and an exterior eave wall chimney.  
 
Proposed Project 
The existing residence is 953 square feet in size.  The applicant is proposing to add 847 square 
feet, including 340 square feet to the lower floor and 507 square feet to the upper-floor 
equaling a total square footage of 1,800 square feet.  In addition to the expansion of the 
residence, the project consists of the following components: 1) the construction of a front- 
(west) facing deck on the new second-story addition at the rear that will be concealed behind 
the historic first-story ridge line of the residence; 2) the replacement of a 2 ½’ by 6’ 8” original 
wood door on the front (south west) elevation of the 1936 addition with a 2 ½’ by 3 ½’ 
casement window; 3) the removal of two vertical non-historic sections of sandstone veneer 
from the immediate sides of the west facing garage and their replacement with board-and-
batten wood siding to match the existing wall cladding; and 4) the repair of the altered top of 
the existing Carmel stone chimney on the south side elevation. 
 
The new addition is proposed to have board-and-batten siding that will be differentiated from 
the historic board-and-batten as well as new windows with muntin bars that will be altered 
slightly to differentiate them from existing windows.  All work shall conform to the approved 
plans except as conditioned by this permit.       
 
Staff Analysis 
 
Historic Evaluation Summary: The California Environmental Quality Act requires environmental 
review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards. The proposed alterations were reviewed by the City’s Historic Preservation 
Consultant: Kent Seavey. The Phase II Historic Assessment prepared by Mr. Seavey on 
September 1, 2016, includes an analysis of the proposed changes based on the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties (Attachment D). The assessment 
concludes that the project would be consistent with the Standards.    
 
Alterations:  The Secretary’s Standards recommend that new additions be placed on secondary 
elevations and where alterations have already occurred.  Standard #9 states that “the new work 
will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the massing, size, and scale to 
protect the historic integrity of the property.”  Standard #10 states “New additions and adjacent 

85



DS 16-306 (Garren) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 3  
 
or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner that, if removed in the future, 
the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be 
unimpaired.” 
 
The second-story addition will be located over the roof of the 1936 addition.  While the 
addition will be located at the rear of the residence, portions of the addition that will be 
partially visible from the front, primary elevation, include a new divided-light window, new 
French windows and the addition’s asphalt shingle roof which will match the existing roof.  In 
addition to the second-story addition to the rear of the residence, there will be two alterations 
to the front, primary elevation of the property.  First, according to the Phase II Historic Report, 
two narrow vertical non-historic sections of sandstone veneer will be removed from the 
immediate sides of the west facing garage and replaced with board and batten wood siding to 
match the existing historic board-and-batten siding.  Second, the existing historic wood- and 
glass-paneled door with six divided lights on the front (west) elevation of the 1936 addition will 
be replaced with a new window that will have 4 divided lights and a muntin pattern that will 
match the existing door.  The Board should consider whether the door should be removed and 
if matching the muntin pattern on the new window is appropriate.  
 
Since the door proposed for removal is a secondary door, and not the front door, access to the 
house via the front stone stairs and path will not be altered.  However, since the removal of this 
door constitutes a change to the front (primary) elevation of the property, the Board should 
consider if this is consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.  According to the 
Phase II Historic Report, the treatment is consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards for Rehabilitation since “the character-defining features of the historic building’s 
primary elevation are not radically changed,” and “the new construction is compatible with the 
site preserving the historic relationship between building, landscape features and open space.”   
 
In regard to the compatibility of the addition with the massing, size and scale of the historic 
property, the Phase II Historic Assessment identifies that the rehabilitation work is mostly on 
secondary elevations and that the proposed additions are “primarily located on inconspicuous 
areas of the historic building envelope.”  Staff notes that the addition is proposed to be 2 stories 
in height, located on a secondary elevation at the rear of the residence over the historic 1936 
addition to the residence and will extend the building’s footprint by approximately 12 feet to 
the east (rear).  At the recommendation of Mr. Seavey, the applicant lowered the top roof ridge 
of the proposal from 24 feet to the currently proposed 23 feet in order to minimize its visibility.   
 

86



DS 16-306 (Garren) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 4  
 
While the proposed second-story addition may be visible from the public right-of-way, staff 
concurs with Mr. Seavy’s evaluation that its visibility will be minimal since the elevation of the 
grade on which the residence sits is several feet higher than the elevation of the grade at the 
street.  Additionally, the historic residence is set back approximately 37 feet from the front 
property line while the new addition will be set back approximately 58 feet from the front 
property line.  In staff’s opinion, the proposed project is consistent with Standard #9. 
 
The siding on the proposed addition will be vertical wood board-and-batten measuring 1 inch by 
4 inches with a 16-inch separation to differentiate it from the historic siding measuring 1 inch 
by 3 inches with a 12-inch separation between battens.  Additionally, the project’s new 
windows are differentiated from the historic windows with two vertical muntin bars separating 
three lights at the top of the window and one light at the bottom.  While the historic windows 
have a single vertical muntin bar separating two lights at the top of the window and one light at 
the bottom.  The Board should determine if the proposed muntin differentiations are sufficient 
in order to comply with Standard #9, or if additional differentiations of the window sash, sill or 
framing are necessary.   
 
On the north side elevation, where the new addition joins the historic residence, staff notes 
that no wall reveal is used and the differentiated board-and-batten siding is instead used to 
convey the transition from the historic portion of the residence to the new addition.  The Board 
should decide if the altered siding alone is sufficient to differentiate the 1st-story bedroom 
addition (Bedroom #2) from the historic residence. On the south elevation, it appears that the 
applicant has already offset the second-story addition located over the historic residence and 
has also offset the proposed 1st story bedroom addition from the original south wall.  
Furthermore, according to the Phase II Historic Report, the addition runs along the rear of the 
residence and does not wrap around the historic fabric of the residence and could be removed 
without impairing the integrity of the historic residence as recommended by Standard #10. 
 
Window and Door Removals:  The proposed addition will require the removal of 2 original 
windows (windows E and G), and 3 original doors (doors C, F and H).  Additionally, two original 
windows on the north elevation will be relocated on the same wall of the residence to the 
master bathroom (windows K and J).  On the west (front) primary elevation, a 2’ - 6” x 6’ – 8” 
wood and glass paneled door is proposed to be removed and replaced with a new 2’- 6” x 3’ - 
6” casement window.  On the north (side) elevation, the applicant will retain one original 
window, relocate two original windows on the wall of the historic residence and will remove an 
existing 2’ - 8” x 6’ - 8” historic wood and glass-paneled door with four divided lights and 

87



DS 16-306 (Garren) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 5  
 
replace it with a new 2’ - 6” x 4’ casement window. On the east (rear) elevation, the applicant is 
proposing to remove the entire rear wall including a historic 2’- 6” x 3’ casement window, a 2’ - 
8” x 6’ - 8” pair of French doors and two side-by-side 2’ x 4’ casement windows. On the south 
(side) elevation, the applicant is proposing to retain all original historic windows and building 
fabric.  The only concern that staff identified is that the proposed upper-story French windows 
which provide access to the deck from the master bedroom will be partially visible on the 
primary elevation and may not be compatible in appearance with the residence’s historic 
windows. All other proposed fenestration is consistent with Standard #9 of the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards requiring that “the new work will be differentiated from the old.” No 
historic windows are proposed to be reused on the addition and only two windows on the 
north elevation will be moved and reinstalled on the same wall of the historic building.  In 
staff’s opinion, the removal or relocation of these historic windows and doors is consistent with 
these Standards. 
 
In the Phase II Assessment, Mr. Seavey concludes that the new addition is designed and located 
so that the character-defining features of the building would not be obscured, damaged or 
destroyed and that “the proposed work will be executed consistent with the Secretary’s 
Standards for Rehabilitation with the least possible loss of historic material.”  Mr. Seavey 
concludes that “the proposed new work will not cause a significant change to the listed historic 
building” and as such “no mitigation is needed for this project.”  Staff concurs with Mr. Seavey 
and supports the overall project subject to the attached conditions of approval (Attachment A).    
 
Alternatives:  The staff recommendation is to issue a determination that the application, as 
conditioned, is consistent with the Secretary’s Standards.  Alternatively, the Board could find 
the application inconsistent with the Secretary’s Standards, which would result in either the 
withdrawal of the project by the applicant, or the requirement that the project undergo 
additional CEQA analysis to evaluate impacts on historic resources.   
 
Environmental Review: The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards.  If the alterations are consistent with the standards, 
potential historic resource impacts under CEQA do not require further analysis.  Staff concludes 
that the proposed alterations would be consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
and therefore, do not require additional environmental analysis.   
 
 

88



DS 16-306 (Garren) 
October 17, 2016 
Staff Report  
Page 6  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Attachment A – Site Photographs 
• Attachment B – Conditions of Approval  
• Attachment C – DPR 523 Form / Phase II Historic Assessment/Secretary of the 

Interior’s Standards 
• Attachment D – Project Plans 

89



Attachment A 

Garren Residence Photographs 

West (Front) elevation of the existing residence 

 

 

90



 

East (rear) yard and rear elevation 

 

91



 

 

92



South (side) yard and elevation 

 

 

93



 

94



Attachment B – Conditions of Approval 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA  

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

DS 16-306 
Ron and Donna Garren 
Santa Rita, 3 NE of 6th Avenue  
Block: 62 Lots: 14 
APN: 010-035-013 
October 17, 2016 

 
 

 
AUTHORIZATION: 

 
1. This Determination of Consistency (DS 16-306) authorizes alterations to an existing 953-square 
foot residence, subject to Planning Commission approval, as shown on the plans dated October 5, 
2016. The project includes a total addition of 847 square feet including 340 square feet to the 
lower floor and 507 square feet to the upper-floor equaling a total square footage of 1,800 
square feet.  The project consists of the following components: 1) The addition of 2 bedrooms 
(bedrooms 1 and 2 on the floor plan) to the first-story, rear east elevation; 2) The addition of two 
bedrooms (bedroom 4 and the master bedroom) and a bathroom (bathroom 2) to the second-story rear 
east elevation; 3) the construction of a front- (west) facing deck on the new second-story addition at the 
rear that will be concealed behind the historic first-story ridge line of the residence; 4) the replacement of 
a 2 ½’ by 6’ 8” original wood door on the front (south west) elevation of the 1936 addition with a 2 ½’ by 
3 ½’ casement window; 5) the removal of two vertical non-historic sections of sandstone veneer from the 
immediate sides of the west facing garage and their replacement with board-and-batten wood siding to 
match the existing wall cladding; 6) the repair of the altered top of the existing Carmel stone chimney on 
the south side elevation.   
 
The new addition is proposed to have board-and-batten siding that will be differentiated from 
the historic board-and-batten as well as new windows with muntin bars that will be altered 
slightly to differentiate them from existing windows.  All work shall conform to the approved 
plans except as conditioned by this permit.       
 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

 
1. Measured drawings and photo-documentation of the existing elevations shall be 

95



DS 16-306 (Garren) 
October 17, 2016 
Conditions of Approval 
Page 2  
 

prepared and submitted to the City to include in the historical record. 
 

2. Prior to the beginning of construction, the applicant shall convene a pre-
construction meeting to include the contractor and the City’s Project Planner to 
ensure compliance with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of 
Historic Properties. 

96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108


	MEETING AGENDA
	A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION
	C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	D.  APPEARANCES
	E.   CONSENT AGENDA
	J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS
	K.  ADJOURNMENT


	DS 16-308 (Henderson) - Packet.pdf
	DS 16-308 (Henderson) - Attach A - Conditions of Approval.pdf
	CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	DS 16-308


	DS 16-276 (Holtkamp) - Packet.pdf
	DS 16-276 (Holtkamp) - Attach A - Conditions of Approval.pdf
	CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	DS 16-276


	DS 16-377 (Ayres) - Packet.pdf
	DS 16-377 (Ayres) - Attach A - Conditions of Approval.pdf
	CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	DS 16-377


	DS 16-306 (Garren) - Packet.pdf
	DS 16-306 (Garren) - Attach B Conditions of Approval.pdf
	SPECIAL CONDITIONS:





